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THE HARBOR ISLANDS MASSACRE, 1757
-Tom Stransky, June 1978
(From sources on the French-Indian War and on Lake George)

During the French and Indian War, which began in 1755 although not decla#ed
until 1756, ZEnglish military pldns called for the capture of Crown Point on
Lake Cbamplaln, via Ticondefroga. In 1 755, the French, under Baron Dieskau,
had begun to build a fort at Ticonderoga, and at the same time to attack

the English south of Lake George, at Carrying-Place on the Huddeon, near Fort
Edward. General William Johnson, British Commander, came to meet Dieskzu.
Upon arriving =t Lac du Sacrament, Johnson Changed its name to Lake George
(in honor of King GeorgelI). Johnson won the battle (Sert. 8), and hegan

to comnstruct Fort William Henry, at the southwest end of the Lake.

In 1756 summer, the south shore resembled 2 small shipy=rd of newly built
armed sloops, bateaux, loncboats and whalebosts -- 211 in T epqratiqm for
an armada trek up the lake the next year, In nid-March '57, the French

and thelr Indian allies came down the lake, f=2iled to take the fort, but
did destroy a large portion of the new English fleet.

The French, r quis de Monte

up plans f 2 Henry and pre-
lude to a e Mgt L n 3 57, he had a Ticon-
deroga a large fleet n army of 8,000 (French Regulars, recrult,

The Bristish were f Montcalm8s plans. In July '57, Colonel John
varku- led a s - up the lske, thr>ugh the Narrows and 1or5 the
safer west sid n Day Point. As a bezse to thwart ofF such EX¥E
expedltlons, a Jnnn ans were using the Harbor Is]anus, the
last large and _ ; ed cluster before the open space north fo
Sabtath Day Pofnt. ne dians could easil - conceal their canoes form
south . rn eyes 1v v and the lfpﬂors west or east of the gap
between Hewitt and Hecker., Close to the west side of tre islands the
English were suddenly pounced upon froo quick Indisn canoes =2nd ambushed
from the 1slands® shores 131 English were killed, 100 escaped, thf others
were captured and taken to the Islands. The~re uo

b

st were tortured and
killed, and their remains are now part of the island soil or &f the sur-
rounding nea rby lake bed. Three Pritish soldil rs were cooked and eaten
by the Indians. The few who had m2na ged to escape the Islands returned
to Fort William Henry and there related the bloody gtory -- and so 1t has
been recorded in the military minutes.

Shortly afterwards, on August 2, Montealm arrived from Ticonderoga with
his fleet at Northwest RBay, =nd there rrndervoused with = land force. By
the earlv morning of "héuqt 4, the armada disembrsked in the cove on the
sout . w est side, near Tea Island, On the 5th, Yontcalm opened fire. Four
days 1 ter the British raised the white flazg. The fort was then quickly
destroyed; the smoke fromx the razed timber pyre could be seen at Port
Ldward, 14 miles away. The French army embarked 2nd returned up the lake.

The next summer, July '58, Major "eneral Jesmes Abercrombie left the south
end for Fort Ticonderoga with 16,000 men in more than 2 thousand boats =nd
caroes. Two were "batesux" -- propelled by ozr and sall, and mounted with



cannon, "flo=ting batteries". One of the two on this trip sank at the
base of Black Mountain, near the isl nd southwest of the Mother Bunch; the
1sland is today named Floating Battery. Upon arrival at Ticonderoga, the
British were defeated with grest loss,



